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ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The following unaudited financial statements have been prepared by Laredo Oil, Inc. (the “Company"), pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Securities and
Exchange Commission (“SEC”). Certain information and footnote disclosures normally included in financial statements prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles have been omitted pursuant to such SEC rules and regulations; nevertheless, the Company believes that the disclosures are
adequate to make the information presented not misleading. However, except as disclosed herein, there have been no material changes in the information
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements for the year ended May 31, 2011. These financial statements and the notes attached hereto should be read in
conjunction with the financial statements and notes included in the Company's Form 10-K/A, which was filed with the SEC on September 27, 2011. In the
opinion of management of the Company, all adjustments, including normal recurring adjustments necessary to present fairly the financial position of Laredo Oil,
Inc., as of August 31, 2011 and the results of its operations and cash flows for the three month period then ended, have been included. The results of operations
for the three month period ended August 31, 2011 are not necessarily indicative of the results for the full year ending May 31, 2012.
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Laredo Oil, Inc.
Balance Sheets
August 31,
2011
(unaudited)
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Prepaid expenses and other assets
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES & STOCKHOLDERS’ (DEFICIT) EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Deferred income
Warrant liability
Notes payable
Convertible notes payable

May 31,
2011

$

87,045
36,017

$

428
24,051

$

123,062

$

24,479

$

43,728
40,132
40,833
189,328
350,000
-

84,708
200,442
1,265,595
425,000
300,000

664,021

2,275,745

Total Liabilities
Stockholders’ Equity
Common Stock: $0.0001 par value; 90,000,000 shares authorized; 52,000,013 issued and
outstanding
Additional paid in capital
Accumulated deficit
Total Stockholders’(Deficit) Equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES & STOCKHOLDERS’ (DEFICIT) EQUITY

5,200
5,583,217
(6,129,376)
(540,959)
$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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123,062

5,200
(400,984)
(1,855,482)
(2,251,266)
24,479

Laredo Oil, Inc.
Statements of Operations
(Unaudited)

Three Months
Ended

Three Months
Ended
August 31, 2010
(restated)

August 31, 2011
Management service fee revenue

$

421,399

$

-

Cost of revenue

224,184

-

Gross profit

197,215

-

26,706
5,077,256

173,888
338,519

(4,906,748)

(512,407)

442,027
200,000
(9,173)

379,899
(9,225)

General, selling and administrative expenses
Consulting and professional services
Operating loss
Non-operating income
Warrant liability income
Other income
Interest expense
Net loss

$

(4,273,894)

$

(141,733)

Net loss per share, basic and diluted
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding

$

(0.08)
52,000,013

$

(0.00)
50,402,187

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Laredo Oil, Inc.
Statements of Cash Flows
(Unaudited)

Three Months
Ended

Three Months
Ended
August 31, 2010
(restated)

August 31, 2011
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
Common stock issued for services
Issuance of warrants for services
Gain on revaluation of warrant liability
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses
Decrease in accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Increase in deferred income

$

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of notes payable
Proceeds from issuance of convertible notes payable
Repayment of convertible notes payable
Capital contributions
Issuance of common stock

(4,273,894)

$

(141,733)

4,931,873
(442,027)

207,067
(379,899)

(11,966)
(201,290)
40,833

6,771
(103,754)
-

43,529

(411,548)

-

-

(75,000)
(300,000)
418,088
-

25,000
500,000

NET CASH PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES

43,088

525,000

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

86,617

113,452

428

157,005

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERIOD
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERIOD

$

87,045

$

270,457

$

43,088

$

-

$

634,240

$

-

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES:
Interest paid
NON-CASH FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Reclassification of warrant liability to equity

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Laredo Oil, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
August 31, 2011
(Unaudited)
NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS
Laredo Oil, Inc. (the “Company”) was in the development stage prior to the three months ended August 31, 2011. During the three months ended August 31,
2011, the Company exited the development stage due to operating revenues generated by certain agreements.
On June 14, 2011, the Company entered into agreements with Stranded Oil Resources Corporation (“SORC”) to seek recovery of stranded crude oil from
mature, declining oil fields by using the Enhanced Oil Recovery (“EOR”) method known as Underground Gravity Drainage (“UGD”). Such agreements include
license agreements, management services agreements, and other agreements (collectively “the Agreements”).
The Agreements stipulate that the Company and Mark See, the Company’s Chairman and CEO, will provide to SORC, management services and expertise
through exclusive, perpetual license agreements and a management services agreement (the “Management Service Agreement”) with SORC. As consideration
for the licenses to SORC, the Company will receive an interest in SORC’s net profits. The Management Service Agreement outlines that the Company will
provide the services of key employees (“Key Persons”), including Mark See, in exchange for monthly and quarterly management service fees. The monthly and
quarterly management service fees provide funding for the salaries, benefit costs, and FICA taxes for the Key Persons identified in the agreement. The quarterly
management fee of $122,500 per quarter is paid on the first day of each calendar quarter, and, as such, $40,833 has been recorded as deferred income at
August 31, 2011. In addition, SORC will reimburse the Company for monthly expenses incurred by the Key Persons in connection with their rendition of
services under the Management Services Agreement. The Company may submit written requests to SORC for additional funding for payment of the Company’s
operating costs and expenses, which SORC, in its sole and absolute discretion, will determine whether or not to fund.
The initial funding commitment, subject to various conditions including certain milestones, is $16 million which can be increased by the SORC Board of
Directors. SORC is the Company’s sole provider of revenue.
SORC also provided $418,088 to the Company which was used for the sole purpose of paying and retiring in full certain of the Company’s debt obligations and
accrued interest. As of August 31, 2011, all debt obligations and accrued interest other than amounts owed to Alleghany Capital have been repaid. Further,
SORC provided $200,000 to the Company to reimburse a portion of the legal fees incurred in connection with the Agreements. The proceeds used for retiring
the debt obligations are recorded in additional paid in capital and reimbursement of legal fees are included in other income.
Liquidity
These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The Company has no significant operating history as of August 31, 2011, has net
losses of $4.27 million for the three months ended August 31, 2011. The Company entered into the Agreements with SORC to fund operations and to provide
working capital. However, there is no assurance that in the future such financing will be available to meet the Company’s needs.
Management has undertaken steps as part of a plan to improve operations with the goal of sustaining our operations for the next twelve months and
beyond. These steps include (a) providing services and expertise under the Agreements to expand operations so that SORC generates gross profit; and (b)
controlling overhead and expenses. There can be no assurance that the Company can successfully accomplish these steps and it is uncertain that the
Company will achieve a profitable level of operations and obtain additional financing. There can be no assurance that any additional financing will be available to
the Company on satisfactory terms and conditions, if at all.
The accompanying financial statements do not include any adjustments to reflect the possible future effects on the recoverability and classification of assets or
the amounts and classifications of liabilities that may result from the possible inability of the Company to continue as a going concern.
Basic and Diluted Loss per Share
The Company’s basic earnings per share (EPS) amounts have been computed based on the weighted-average number of shares of common stock outstanding
for the period. As the Company realized a net loss for the three months periods ended August 31, 2011 and 2010, no potentially dilutive securities were
included in the calculation of diluted loss per share as their impact would have been anti-dilutive.
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Laredo Oil, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
August 31, 2011
(Unaudited)
NOTE 2 - RECENT AND ADOPTED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
The Company has reviewed recently issued accounting standards and plans to adopt those that are applicable to it. It does not expect the adoption of those
standards to have a material impact on its financial position, results of operations, or cash flows.

NOTE 3 - FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Company recorded warrant liability income of $442,027 and $379,899 for the three months ended August 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

NOTE 4- RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
In both November and December 2009, the Company issued a note payable to Mr. Kenneth Lipson, a shareholder owning over 5% of the Company’s common
stock. In June 2011, $75,000 in notes and $8,026 in accrued interest were repaid using proceeds provided by SORC as disclosed in Note 1.

NOTE 5 - STOCKHOLDERS' (DEFICIT) EQUITY
As of August 31, 2011, the Company has not granted any stock options.
During the three months ended August 31, 2011, the Company issued $4,931,873 in warrants for 5,374,501 shares of common stock with a weighted average
exercise price of $0.70 to an investment bank for its role in enabling the transactions with SORC. In addition, the warrants previously issued to the convertible
debt holders were repriced from $2.00 per share to $0.25 per share during the three months ended August 31, 2011. A $179,515 expense was recorded in
warrant liability income as a result of repricing revaluation on June 14, 2011. All warrants as of August 31, 2011 are exercisable.
On June 14, 2011, as a result of the Agreements disclosed in Note 1, the warrants issued with the convertible notes were reclassified on the balance sheet to
equity due to an amendment to the warrant agreement that removed the price protection on the warrants. The warrants were revalued on June 14, 2011 and
$634,240 in warrant liability was reclassified to additional paid in capital.
As discussed in Note 1, $418,088 was recorded as contributions from SORC for proceeds used to pay in full certain debt obligations and accrued interest.

NOTE 6 – CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE
During the three months ended August 31, 2011, the ten convertible notes totaling $300,000 and accrued interest of $35,062 were paid in full using proceeds
received from SORC as disclosed in Note 1.
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Laredo Oil, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
August 31, 2011
(Unaudited)
NOTE 7 – RESTATEMENT OF PREVIOUSLY ISSUED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Company’s management, in connection with their former auditors, determined that FASB Accounting Standards Codification Topic 815-40-15-5, "Derivatives and
Hedging - Contracts in Entity's Own Equity" ("ASC 815-40"), should have been applied by the Company in the assessment of the warrants issued to Seaside 88
LP and Sutter Securities Incorporated in July 2010, as well as the warrants issued in connection with the convertible debt entered into during May and June
2010 which would have resulted in the Company classifying and recognizing certain warrants previously issued by the Company as a liability rather than as
stockholders' equity.
Company management initially became aware of the possible applicability of ASC 815-40 as a result of an SEC comment letter related to the SEC's review of the
Company's 10-K filing for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2010 and review of the Company’s 10-Q filings for the fiscal quarters ended August 31, 2010,
November 30, 2010 and February 28, 2011. The Company determined that the warrants issued to Seaside Sutter to purchase 975,000 shares of the
Company's common stock, as well as the warrants issued to the Convertible Note holders to purchase 770,000 shares of the Company’s common stock were
within the scope of ASC 815-40 due to the anti-dilution provisions contained in the warrants. Accordingly, the warrants have been classified as a warrant liability
measured at fair value and the subsequent changes in fair value are recognized in the Statement of Operations.
In addition, the Company’s management, in connection with their auditors, determined that FASB Accounting Standards Codification Topic 470-20, "Debt With
Conversion and Other Options” ("ASC 470-20"), should have been applied by the Company in the assessment of its contingent beneficial conversion feature
which would result in the Company not recognizing the deferred financing expense into earnings until the contingency is resolved.
Restatements by the Company reflect certain adjustments to non-cash items in the Company's financial statements as a result of the correct application of ASC
815-40 regarding accounting for warrants and ASC 470-20 regarding accounting for contingent beneficial conversion feature on the convertible debt. The
restatements primarily reflect adjustments to:
•

correct for the overstatement of additional paid in capital and understatement of the warrant liability reported on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
May 31, 2010 and Forms 10-Q for the periods ended August 31, 2010, November 30, 2010, and February 28, 2011.

•

correct for the understatement of warrant liability income upon the quarterly revaluation of the warrant liability reported on Forms 10-Q for the periods
ended August 31, 2010, November 30, 2010, and February 28, 2011.

•

correct for the overstatement in the deferred financing asset and the related interest expense recorded to amortize this asset reported on Form 10-K for
the fiscal year ended May 31, 2010 and Forms 10-Q for the periods ended August 31, 2010, November 30, 2010, and February 28, 2011.

•

correct for the understatement in Convertible Debt balance and overstatement of interest expense due to the incorrect recording of the warrants as a
debt discount and the related amortization of the debt discount on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2010 and Forms 10-Q for the periods
ended August 31, 2010, November 30, 2010, and February 28, 2011.

None of the accounting changes discussed above had any impact on the Company’s cash position, its cash flows or its future cash requirements.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
This report contains forward-looking statements that involve risk and uncertainties. We use words such as "anticipate", "believe", "plan", "expect", "future",
"intend", and similar expressions to identify such forward-looking statements. Investors should be aware that all forward-looking statements contained within this
filing are good faith estimates of management as of the date of this filing. Our actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking
statements.
DESCRIPTION OF SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS WITH STRANDED OIL RESOURCES CORPORATION
From its inception through October 2009, the Company was primarily engaged in acquisition and exploration efforts for mineral properties. After a change in
control in October 2009, the Company shifted its focus to locating mature oil fields with the intention of acquiring those oil fields and recovering stranded oil
using enhanced oil recovery methods. To date, the Company has not acquired any oil fields. On June 14, 2011, the Company entered into several agreements
with Stranded Oil Resources Corporation (“SORC”) to seek recovery of stranded crude oil from mature, declining oil fields by using the Enhanced Oil Recovery
(“EOR”) method known as Underground Gravity Drainage (“UGD”). Such agreements consist of a license agreement between the Company and SORC (the
“SORC License Agreement”), a license agreement between the Company and Mark See, the Company’s Chairman and CEO (the “MS-Company License
Agreement”), an Additional Interests Grant Agreement between the Company and SORC, a Management Services Agreement between the Company and
SORC (the “MSA”), a Finder’s Fee Agreement between the Company and SORC, and a Stockholders Agreement among the Company, SORC and Alleghany
Capital Corporation, each of which are dated June 14, 2011 (collectively, the “Agreements”).
The Company and Mark See now provide to SORC management services and expertise pursuant to the SORC License Agreement, MS-Company License
Agreement and the MSA. As consideration for the licenses to SORC, the Company will receive an interest in SORC net profits as defined in the SORC License
Agreement (the “Royalty”) which will range from 17.25% to 19.49%. Under the SORC License Agreement, the Company agreed that a portion of the Royalty
equal to at least 2.25% of the net profits shall be used to fund a long term incentive plan for the benefit of its employees, as determined by the Company’s board
of directors. Additionally, in the event of a SORC IPO or certain other defined corporate events, the Company will receive a minimum of 17.25%, but not more
than 19.49%, of the SORC common equity or proceeds emanating from the event in exchange for termination of the Royalty. Under certain circumstances
regarding termination of exclusivity and license terminations, the Royalty could be reduced to 7.25%.
The MSA provides that the Company will provide the services of key employees (“Key Persons”), including Mark See, in exchange for monthly and quarterly
management service fees. Mark See will act as the CEO of SORC pursuant to the MSA. He and other members of Company management will spend
substantially all of their time and effort in fulfilling the terms of the Agreements whereby they use their best efforts to evaluate, acquire, develop and recover
crude oil from fields conducive to the UGD oil recovery method. The quarterly management services fee is $122,500 and the monthly management services fee
is comprised of the salaries, benefit costs, and FICA taxes for the Key Persons identified in the Agreements. In addition, SORC will reimburse the Company for
expenses incurred by the Key Persons in connection with their rendition of services under the MSA. The Company may submit written requests to SORC for
additional funding for payment of the Company’s operating costs and expenses which SORC, in its sole and absolute discretion, will determine whether or not to
fund.
It is expected that SORC will be funded solely by Alleghany Capital Corporation, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Alleghany (“Alleghany Capital”), in exchange for
issuance by SORC of 12% cumulative preferred stock and common stock. Prior to the Company receiving any cash distributions from SORC, all accrued
dividends must be paid and preferred shares redeemed. The initial funding commitment, subject to various conditions including certain milestones, is $16 million
which can be increased by the SORC board of directors.
Pursuant to the Additional Interests Grant Agreement, SORC provided $418,088 to the Company which was used for the sole purpose of paying and retiring in
full certain of the Company’s debt obligations and accrued interest. As of the date of this filing, all debt obligations and accrued interest other than amounts owed
to Alleghany Capital have been repaid. Under the Finder’s Fee Agreement, SORC agreed to provide funding to the Company for amounts payable to an
investment bank for certain finder’s fees relating to Alleghany’s investment in SORC, which amounts shall not exceed $1,100,000 in the aggregate. Under the
MS-Company License Agreement, Mark See granted the Company an exclusive license to use certain intellectual property. The Stockholders Agreement, which
shall not be effective unless and until the Royalty is converted into SORC common stock pursuant to the License Agreement, provides, among other things, that
the Company shall have certain registration rights with respect to the SORC common stock it acquires.

10

ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS - continued
The UGD method uses conventional mining processes to establish a chamber underneath an existing oil field from where closely spaced wellbores are intended
to be drilled up into the reservoir, using residual radial pressure and gravity to then drain the targeted reservoir through the wellbores. This method is applicable
to mature oil fields that have very specific geological characteristics. The Company has done extensive research and has identified oil fields within the United
States that it believes are qualified for UGD recovery methods. The Company intends to pursue and recover stranded oil from selected mature fields chosen
from this group which may be acquired by SORC in its sole and absolute discretion. States containing within their boundaries oil fields which are initially being
considered for acquisition by SORC include, but are not limited to, New Mexico, West Virginia, Mississippi, Texas, Oklahoma, Arkansas and Montana.
We believe the costs of implementing the UGD method are significantly lower than those presently experienced by commonly used EOR methods. We also
estimate that we can materially increase the field oil production rate from prior periods and recover amounts of oil equal to or greater than amounts previously
recovered from the mature fields selected.
The Company is a management services company managing both the acquisition of mature oil fields and the recovery of stranded oil from those fields using
enhanced oil recovery methods for its sole customer, SORC, an indirect, wholly owned subsidiary of Alleghany.
To date neither the Company nor SORC have acquired any oil fields. When SORC acquires a targeted oil field, it will continue to operate the producing field and
expects to generate revenue and profit from doing so. Once development of the underground chamber and the UGD method is prepared for operation, the
conventional wells will be capped after UGD production has begun. The effect of such operations should result in minimal disruption of oil production from the
SORC field investments. The Company has agreed with SORC that it will not acquire any fields associated with UGD development.
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
As a result of signing the Agreements with SORC, we started receiving payments under the MSA effective June 14, 2011. As of the date of this report, we are
pursuing negotiations for targeted fields on behalf of SORC, but can provide no assurance that we will be successful in our acquisition efforts.
We received our initial license revenue from SORC during the quarter ended August 31, 2011. Pursuant to the contracts, we received and recorded
management service fee revenue totaling $421,399 for the three months ended August 31, 2011. Direct costs associated with this revenue totaled $224,184 for
the three months ended August 31, 2011.
We incurred operating expenses of $5,103,962 and $512,407 for the three months ended August 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. These expenses consisted of
general operating expenses incurred in connection with the day to day operation of our business, the preparation and filing of our required reports, and costs
associated with fund raising. The increase in expenses for the three months ended August 31, 2011 as compared to the same period in 2010 is primarily
attributable to the costs of closing the Allegany transaction, as well as hiring new employees.
Additionally, for the quarters ended August 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company experienced gains on changes of value of the warrant liability of $442,027 and
$379,899, respectively, due to decreases in the common stock price in the respective periods, as well as a change in the exercise price on certain
warrants. During the three months ended August 31, 2011, the Company fixed the price of the warrants issued in connection with the $300,000 Convertible
Notes to $0.25 per share and removed the price protection originally included with the warrants. Removal of the price protection feature resulted in reclassifying
the warrant liability to additional paid in capital. However, Company losses will continue to be affected by changes of value of the warrant liability associated
with the warrants which contain price-protection provisions. Those warrants will be outstanding until they are either exercised or expire in July 2015.
Beginning on June 14, 2011, the Company began its operations in accordance with the Agreements with SORC. As of the filing of this report, the Company has
presented opportunities for suitable fields to the SORC board of directors. Negotiations with selected field owners are ongoing and contractors necessary to
assist the Company in identifying and acquiring oil properties have been retained by SORC. Three new employees have been hired, two based in the new
Colorado office and one additional person based in the Austin, Texas headquarters office.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS - continued
LIQUIDITY & CAPITAL RESOURCES
Due to the nature of the SORC transaction, the Company forecasts that it will need no additional funding in order to execute its agreements with SORC. In
accordance with the SORC license and management services agreements, the Company believes that it will receive sufficient working capital necessary to meet
its obligations under the Agreements. The Company will provide the know-how, expertise, and management required to identify, evaluate, acquire, test and
develop targeted properties, and SORC will provide all required funding and will own the acquired assets. It is expected that SORC will be funded solely by
Alleghany Capital in exchange for issuance by SORC to Alleghany Capital of 12% cumulative preferred stock and common stock in amounts to be
determined. Prior to the Company receiving any royalty cash distributions from SORC, all preferred share accrued dividends must be paid and preferred shares
redeemed. The initial funding commitment, subject to various conditions including certain milestones, is $16 million which can be increased by the SORC board
of directors.
Our cash and cash equivalents at August 31, 2011 and 2010 was $87,045 and $270,457, respectively. For the three months ended August 31, 2011, the
Company received $1,088,113 from SORC in management fees, reimbursement for transaction expenses, and funds used to retire a portion of the Company's
debt. Total debt outstanding as of the filing date of this report is $350,000 owed to Alleghany Capital.
The Company has no significant operating history as of August 31, 2011, has net losses of $4.27 million for the three months ended August 31, 2011. The
Company entered into the Agreements with SORC to fund operations and to provide working capital. However, there is no assurance that in the future such
financing will be available to meet the Company’s needs.
Management has undertaken steps as part of a plan to improve operations with the goal of sustaining our operations for the next twelve months and
beyond. These steps include (a) providing services and expertise under the Agreements to expand operations so that SORC generates gross profit; and (b)
controlling overhead and expenses. There can be no assurance that the Company can successfully accomplish these steps and it is uncertain that the
Company will achieve a profitable level of operations and obtain additional financing. There can be no assurance that any additional financing will be available to
the Company on satisfactory terms and conditions, if at all.
The accompanying financial statements do not include any adjustments to reflect the possible future effects on the recoverability and classification of assets or
the amounts and classifications of liabilities that may result from the possible inability of the Company to continue as a going concern.
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES
The process of preparing financial statements requires that we make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of liabilities and stockholders’
equity at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Such estimates primarily relate to
revaluation of warrants as of the date of the financial statements; accordingly, actual results may differ from estimated amounts. Our estimates and assumptions
are based on current facts, historical experience and various other factors we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances. The most significant estimates
with regard to the financial statements included with this report relate to valuation of warrants.
These estimates and assumptions are reviewed periodically and, as adjustments become necessary, they are reported in earnings in the periods in which they
become known.
OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS
We have no off-balance sheet arrangements.
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ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
Our exposure to market risk is confined to our cash equivalents. We invest in high-quality financial instruments and we believe we are subject to limited credit
risk. Due to the short-term nature of our cash, we do not believe that we have any material exposure to interest rate risk arising from our investments.
ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
(a)

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, after evaluating the effectiveness of the Company’s controls and procedures (as defined in
the Securities Act of 1934 Rule 13a-15(e) or Rule 15d-15(e)) as of the end of the period covered by this report, have concluded that the Company’s disclosure
controls and procedures are not effective to give reasonable assurance that the information required to be disclosed in reports that the Company files under the
Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported as and when required.
Our size has prevented us from being able to employ sufficient resources to enable us to have an adequate level of supervision and segregation of duties.
Therefore, it is difficult to effectively segregate accounting duties which comprises a material weakness in internal controls. This lack of segregation of duties
leads management to conclude that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures are not effective to give reasonable assurance that the information
required to be disclosed in reports that the Company files under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported as and when required.
(b)

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

None.
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PART II - OTHER INFORMATION
ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
None
ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS
None
ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES
None
ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
None
ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION
None
ITEM 6. EXHIBITS
The exhibits required to be filed herewith by Item 601 of Regulation S-K, as described in the following index of exhibits, are attached hereto unless otherwise
indicated as being incorporated herein by reference, as follows:
3.1

Certificate of Incorporation, included as Exhibit 3.1 in our Form S-1 filed August 25, 2008, File No. 333-153168 and incorporated herein by reference.

3.2

Certificate of Amendment of Certificate of Incorporation, included as Exhibit 10.1 to our Form 8-K filed October 22, 2009 and incorporated herein by
reference.

3.3

Bylaws, included as Exhibit 3.2 in our S-1 filed August 25, 2008, File No. 333-153168 and incorporated herein by reference.

10.1

Amended and Restated Form of Warrant to Purchase Stock of Laredo Oil, Inc. (amending Form of Warrant to Purchase Stock of Laredo Oil, Inc.
included as Exhibit 10.2 in our Current Report on Form 8-K filed June 9, 2010).

10.2

Amended and Restated Form of Common Stock Purchase Warrant (amending Form of Common Stock Purchase Warrant included as Exhibit 10.7 in our
Current Report on Form 8-K filed June 20, 2011).

31.1

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1

Certificate Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 signed by the Chief Executive Officer

32.2

Certificate Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 signed by the Chief Financial Officer
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SIGNATURES
In accordance with the requirements of the Exchange Act, the registrant caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized.

LAREDO OIL, INC.
(Registrant)

Date: October 17, 2011

By:

/s/ Mark See
Mark See
Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board

Date: October 17, 2011

By:

/s/ Bradley E. Sparks
Bradley E. Sparks
Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Director
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EXHIBIT 10.1
THIS WARRANT AND THE SECURITIES ISSUABLE UPON EXERCISE OF THIS WARRANT HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES
ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE “ACT”), OR UNDER THE SECURITIES LAWS OF APPLICABLE STATES. THESE SECURITIES ARE SUBJECT TO
RESTRICTIONS ON TRANSFERABILITY AND RESALE AND MAY NOT BE TRANSFERRED OR RESOLD EXCEPT AS PERMITTED UNDER THE ACT
AND THE APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS, PURSUANT TO REGISTRATION OR EXEMPTION THEREFROM. INVESTORS SHOULD BE
AWARE THAT THEY MAY BE REQUIRED TO BEAR THE FINANCIAL RISKS OF THIS INVESTMENT FOR AN INDEFINITE PERIOD OF TIME. THE
ISSUER OF THESE SECURITIES MAY REQUIRE AN OPINION OF COUNSEL IN FORM AND SUBSTANCE SATISFACTORY TO THE ISSUER TO THE
EFFECT THAT ANY PROPOSED TRANSFER OR RESALE IS IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE ACT AND ANY APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS.
AMENDED AND RESTATED WARRANT TO PURCHASE STOCK
OF
LAREDO OIL, INC.
Warrant No. [NUMBER]

Originally Issued on [ISSUE DATE], 2010
Void after [ISSUE DATE], 2015

This certifies that in consideration of the sum of [AMOUNT OF NOTE]. previously paid to LAREDO OIL, INC., a Delaware corporation (the “ Company”),
with principal offices at 111 Congress Avenue, Ste. 400, Austin, Texas 78701, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, [WARRANT HOLDER] is entitled,
subject to the terms and conditions of this Warrant, to purchase from the Company at any time during the period commencing on June 14, 2011 and ending at
5:00 p.m. Pacific Time on [ISSUE DATE], 2015 (the “Expiration Date”) up to that number of shares of Warrant Stock (as defined below) as determined in
Section 2.1 below at a price per share equal to the Warrant Price (as defined below), upon surrender of this Warrant at the principal offices of the Company,
together with a duly executed subscription form in the form attached hereto as Exhibit 1 and simultaneous payment of the full Warrant Price for the shares of
Warrant Stock so purchased in lawful money of the United States. The Warrant Price and the number and character of shares of Warrant Stock purchasable
under this Warrant are subject to adjustment as provided herein.
This Amended and Restated Warrant amends and restates in its entirety the original Warrant issued pursuant to that certain Note and Warrant Purchase
Agreement dated as of [ISSUE DATE], 2010 (the “Purchase Agreement”), by and among the Company, the original holder of this Warrant and certain other
investors listed on the Schedule of Investors attached to the Purchase Agreement as Exhibit A, and is subject to the provisions thereof.
1.

DEFINITIONS. The following definitions shall apply for purposes of this Warrant:

1.1
“Change of Control” means (a) any sale or exchange of the capital stock by the shareholders of the Company in one transaction or
series of related transactions where more than 50% of the outstanding voting power of the Company is acquired by a person or entity or group of related persons
or entities; or (b) any reorganization, consolidation, merger or similar transaction or series of related transactions (each, a “combination transaction”) in which
the Company is a constituent corporation or is a party if, as a result of such combination transaction, the voting securities of the Company that are outstanding
immediately prior to the consummation of such combination transaction (other than any such securities that are held by an Acquiring Shareholder, as defined
below) do not represent, or are not converted into, securities of the surviving corporation of such combination transaction (or such surviving corporation’s parent
corporation if the surviving corporation is owned by the parent corporation) that, immediately after the consummation of such combination transaction, together
possess at least a majority of the total voting power of all securities of such surviving corporation (or its parent corporation, if applicable) that are outstanding
immediately after the consummation of such combination transaction, including securities of such surviving corporation (or its parent corporation, if applicable)
that are held by the Acquiring Shareholder; or (c) a sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company, that is followed by the distribution of the proceeds
to the Company’s shareholders. For purposes of this Section 1.1, an “Acquiring Shareholder” means a shareholder or shareholders of the Company that (i)
merges or combines with the Company in such combination transaction or (ii) owns or controls a majority of another corporation that merges or combines with
the Company in such combination transaction.
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1.2
“Company” means the “Company” as defined above and includes any corporation that shall succeed to or assume the obligations of
the Company under this Warrant.
1.3

“Holder” means any person who shall at the time be the registered holder of this Warrant.

1.4

[Reserved]

1.5

“Note” means the Subordinated Convertible Promissory Note of even date herewith initially payable to the initial Holder hereof.

1.6
“Notes” means a series of subordinated convertible promissory notes aggregating up to $300,000 in principal amount issued under
one or more Purchase Agreements, of which the Note is one, each such note containing substantially identical terms and conditions as the Note.
1.7

“Purchase Amount” means two hundred fifty percent (250%) of the principal amount of the Note.

1.8

“Warrant” means this Warrant and any warrant(s) delivered in substitution or exchange therefore, as provided herein.

1.9
“Warrants” means a series of warrants to purchase the Company’s common stock issued under one or more Purchase Agreements,
of which this Warrant is one, each such warrant containing substantially identical terms and conditions as this Warrant.
1.10

“Warrant Price” means $0.25 per share. The Warrant Price is subject to adjustment as provided herein.

1.11
“Warrant Stock” means the Company’s common stock. The number and character of shares of Warrant Stock are subject to
adjustment as provided herein and the term “Warrant Stock” shall include stock and other securities and property at any time receivable or issuable upon
exercise of this Warrant in accordance with its terms.
2.

EXERCISE.

2.1
Method of Exercise. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Warrant, the Holder may exercise this Warrant in whole only, at any
time or from time to time, on any business day before the Expiration Date for up to that number of shares of Warrant Stock that is obtained by dividing (a) the
Purchase Amount by (b) one dollar ($1.00), by surrendering this Warrant at the principal offices of the Company, with the subscription form attached hereto duly
executed by the Holder, and payment of an amount equal to the product obtained by multiplying (i) the number of shares of Warrant Stock to be purchased by
the Holder by (ii) the Warrant Price or adjusted Warrant Price therefore, if applicable, as determined in accordance with the terms hereof.
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2.2
Form of Payment. Payment may be made by (i) a check payable to the Company’s order, (ii) wire transfer of funds to the Company,
(iii) cancellation of indebtedness of the Company to the Holder, or (iv) any combination of the foregoing.
2.3
No Fractional Shares. No fractional shares may be issued upon any exercise of this Warrant, and any fractions shall be rounded
down to the nearest whole number of shares. If upon any exercise of this Warrant a fraction of a share results, the Company will pay the cash value of any such
fractional share, calculated on the basis of the Warrant Price.
2.4
Restrictions on Exercise. This Warrant may not be exercised if the issuance of the Warrant Stock upon such exercise would
constitute a violation of any applicable federal or state securities laws or other laws or regulations. As a condition to the exercise of this Warrant, the Holder
shall execute the subscription form attached hereto as Exhibit 1, confirming and acknowledging that the representations and warranties of the Holder set forth in
Section 4 of the Purchase Agreement are true and correct as of the date of exercise.
2.5
Net Exercise. In lieu of cash exercising this Warrant, the holder of this Warrant may elect to receive shares equal to the value of this
Warrant (or the portion thereof being canceled) by surrender of this Warrant at the principal office of the Company together with notice of such election, in which
event the Company shall issue to the holder hereof a number of shares of Warrant Stock computed using the following formula:
Y (A - B)
X=

A

Where:
X --

The number of shares of Warrant Stock to be issued to the holder of this Warrant.

Y --

The number of shares of Warrant Stock purchasable under this Warrant.

A --

The fair market value of one share of Warrant Stock.

B --

The Warrant Price (as adjusted to the date of such calculations).

For purposes of this Section 2.5, the fair market value of a share of Warrant Stock shall mean the average of the closing bid and asked prices of shares
of Warrant Stock quoted in the over-the-counter market in which the shares of Warrant Stock are traded or the closing price quoted on any exchange on which
such shares are listed, whichever is applicable, as published in the Western Edition of The Wall Street Journal for the ten (10) trading days prior to the date of
determination of fair market value (or such shorter period of time during which such stock was traded over-the-counter or on such exchange). If the shares of
Warrant Stock are not traded on the over-the-counter market or on an exchange, the fair market value shall be the price per share of Warrant Stock that the
Company could obtain from a willing buyer for such shares sold by the Company from authorized but unissued shares of Warrant Stock, as such prices shall be
determined in good faith by the Company’s Board of Directors.

3.
ISSUANCE OF STOCK . Except as set forth in Section 4, this Warrant shall be deemed to have been exercised immediately prior to the close
of business on the date of its surrender for exercise as provided above, and the person entitled to receive the shares of Warrant Stock issuable upon such
exercise shall be treated for all purposes as the holder of record of such shares as of the close of business on such date. As soon as practicable on or after
such date, the Company shall issue and deliver to the person or persons entitled to receive the same a certificate or certificates for the number of whole shares
of Warrant Stock issuable upon such exercise.
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4.
EARLY EXPIRATION. This Warrant shall automatically expire and be of no further force and effect without any action by the Holder immediately
prior to (i) the effective date of a Change of Control. If the Company proposes at any time to effect a Change of Control, the Company shall mail to the Holder a
notice specifying the date on which the Change of Control is anticipated to become effective, and the Holder shall have the right to exercise this Warrant for the
applicable Warrant Stock prior to such expiration event.
5.
ADJUSTMENT PROVISIONS. The number and character of shares of Warrant Stock issuable upon exercise of this Warrant (or any shares of
stock or other securities or property at the time receivable or issuable upon exercise of this Warrant) and the Warrant Price therefore, are subject to adjustment
upon the occurrence of the following events between the date this Warrant is issued and the date it is exercised:
5.1
Adjustment for Stock Splits and Stock Dividends . The Warrant Price of this Warrant and the number of shares of Warrant Stock
issuable upon exercise of this Warrant (or any shares of stock or other securities at the time issuable upon exercise of this Warrant) shall each be proportionally
adjusted to reflect any stock dividend, stock split or reverse stock split, or other similar event affecting the number of outstanding shares of Warrant Stock (or
such other stock or securities).
5.2
Adjustment for Other Dividends and Distributions . In case the Company shall make or issue, or shall fix a record date for the
determination of eligible holders entitled to receive, a dividend or other distribution payable respect to the Warrant Stock that is payable in (a) securities of the
Company (other than issuances with respect to which adjustment is made under Sections 5.1 or 5.3) or (b) assets (other than cash dividends paid or payable
solely out of retained earnings), then, and in each such case, the Holder, upon exercise of this Warrant at any time after the consummation, effective date or
record date of such event, shall receive, in addition to the shares of Warrant Stock issuable upon such exercise prior to such date, the securities or such other
assets of the Company to which the Holder would have been entitled upon such date if the Holder had exercised this Warrant immediately prior thereto (all
subject to further adjustment as provided in this Warrant).
5.3
Adjustment for Reorganization, Consolidation, Merger. Except as provided in Section 4 (Early Expiration), in case of any
recapitalization or reorganization of the Company after the date of this Warrant, or in case, after such date, the Company shall consolidate with or merge into
another corporation, then, and in each such case, the Holder, upon the exercise of this Warrant (as provided in Section 2), at any time after the consummation of
such recapitalization, reorganization, consolidation or merger, shall be entitled to receive, in lieu of the stock or other securities and property receivable upon the
exercise of this Warrant prior to such consummation, the stock or other securities or property to which the Holder would have been entitled upon the
consummation of such recapitalization, reorganization, consolidation or merger if the Holder had exercised this Warrant immediately prior thereto, all subject to
further adjustment as provided in this Warrant, and the successor or purchasing corporation in such reorganization, consolidation or merger (if other than the
Company) shall duly execute and deliver to the Holder a supplement hereto acknowledging such corporation’s obligations under this Warrant; and in each such
case, the terms of this Warrant shall be applicable to the shares of stock or other securities or property receivable upon the exercise of this Warrant after the
consummation of such reorganization, consolidation or merger.
5.4
Conversion of Stock. In case all the authorized Warrant Stock of the Company is converted, pursuant to the Company’s Articles of
Incorporation, into common stock or other securities or property, or the Warrant Stock otherwise ceases to exist, then, in such case, the Holder, upon exercise of
this Warrant at any time after the date on which the Warrant Stock is so converted or ceases to exist (the “Termination Date”), shall receive, in lieu of the
number of shares of Warrant Stock that would have been issuable upon such exercise immediately prior to the Termination Date (the “Former Number of
Shares of Warrant Stock”), the stock and other securities and property that the Holder would have been entitled to receive upon the Termination Date if the
Holder had exercised this Warrant with respect to the Former Number of Shares of Warrant Stock immediately prior to the Termination Date (all subject to further
adjustment as provided in this Warrant).
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5.5
Notice of Adjustments. The Company shall promptly give written notice of each adjustment or readjustment of the Warrant Price or
the number of shares of Warrant Stock or other securities issuable upon exercise of this Warrant. The notice shall describe the adjustment or readjustment and
show in reasonable detail the facts on which the adjustment or readjustment is based.
5.6
No Change Necessary. The form of this Warrant need not be changed because of any adjustment in the Warrant Price or in the
number of shares of Warrant Stock issuable upon its exercise.
5.7
Reservation of Stock. If at any time the number of shares of Warrant Stock or other securities issuable upon exercise of this Warrant
shall not be sufficient to effect the exercise of this Warrant, the Company will take such corporate action as may, in the opinion of its counsel, be necessary to
increase its authorized but unissued shares of Warrant Stock or other securities issuable upon exercise of this Warrant as shall be sufficient for such purpose.
6.
NO RIGHTS OR LIABILITIES AS SHAREHOLDER . This Warrant does not by itself entitle the Holder to any voting rights or other rights as a
shareholder of the Company. In the absence of affirmative action by the Holder to purchase Warrant Stock by exercise of this Warrant, no provisions of this
Warrant, and no enumeration herein of the rights or privileges of the Holder, shall cause the Holder to be a shareholder of the Company for any purpose.
7.
NO IMPAIRMENT. The Company will not, by amendment of its articles of incorporation or bylaws, or through reorganization, consolidation,
merger, dissolution, issue or sale of securities, sale of assets or any other voluntary action, willfully avoid or seek to avoid the observance or performance of any
of the terms of this Warrant, but will at all times in good faith assist in the carrying out of all such terms and in the taking of all such action as may be necessary
or appropriate in order to protect the rights of the holder against wrongful impairment. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Company will take all
such action as may be necessary or appropriate in order that the Company may duly and validly issue fully paid and nonassessable shares of Warrant Stock
upon the exercise of this Warrant.
8.
ATTORNEYS’ FEES. In the event any party is required to engage the services of any attorneys for the purpose of enforcing this Warrant, or any
provision thereof, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its reasonable expenses and costs in enforcing this Warrant, including attorneys’ fees.
9.
TRANSFER. Neither this Warrant nor any rights hereunder may be assigned, conveyed or transferred, in whole or in part, without the
Company’s prior written consent, which the Company may withhold in its sole discretion; provided, however, that this Warrant may be assigned, conveyed or
transferred without the prior written consent of the Company to any person that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, controls, is controlled
by, or is under common control with the Holder. The rights and obligations of the Company and the Holder under this Warrant and the Purchase Agreement
shall be binding upon and benefit their respective permitted successors, assigns, heirs, administrators and transferees.
10.

GOVERNING LAW. This Warrant shall be governed by and construed under the internal laws of the State of Delaware.

11.
HEADINGS. The headings and captions used in this Warrant are used only for convenience and are not to be considered in construing or
interpreting this Warrant. All references in this Warrant to sections and exhibits shall, unless otherwise provided, refer to sections hereof and exhibits attached
hereto, all of which exhibits are incorporated herein by this reference.
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12.
NOTICES. Unless otherwise provided, any notice required or permitted under this Agreement shall be given in writing and shall be deemed
effectively given (a) at the time of personal delivery, if delivery is in person; (b) one business day after deposit with an express overnight courier for United States
deliveries, or two business days after such deposit for deliveries outside of the United States, with proof of delivery from the courier requested; or (c) three
business days after deposit in the United States mail by certified mail (return receipt requested) for United States deliveries when addressed to the party to be
notified at the address indicated for such party on Exhibit A to the Purchase Agreement or, in the case of the Company, at 111 Congress Avenue, Ste. 400,
Austin, Texas 78701, or at such other address as any party or the Company may designate by giving ten days’ advance written notice to all other parties.
13.
AMENDMENT; WAIVER. This Warrant and all other Warrants issued under the Purchase Agreement may be amended and provisions may
be waived by the warrant holders and the Company as provided in Section 6.8 of the Purchase Agreement. Any amendment or waiver effected in accordance
with this Section 13 shall be binding upon each holder of any Warrants at the time outstanding, each future holder of such securities, and the Company.
14.
SEVERABILITY. If one or more provisions of this Warrant are held to be unenforceable under applicable law, such provision(s) shall be
excluded from this Warrant and the balance of the Warrant shall be interpreted as if such provision(s) were so excluded and shall be enforceable in accordance
with its terms.
15.

TERMS BINDING. By acceptance of this Warrant, the Holder accepts and agrees to be bound by all the terms and conditions of this Warrant.

16.

PURCHASE AGREEMENT. This Warrant incorporates by reference all the terms of the Purchase Agreement.
[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Warrant as of the date first written above.
THE COMPANY:
LAREDO OIL, INC.
By:
Name:
Title:
AGREED AND ACKNOWLEDGED
THE HOLDER:
By:
Name:

[WARRANT HOLDER]

Title:

[Signature Page to LAREDO OIL, INC. Amended and Restated Warrant to Purchase Stock]

EXHIBIT 1
FORM OF SUBSCRIPTION
(To be signed only upon exercise of Warrant)
To: LAREDO OIL, INC.
(1)
The undersigned Holder hereby elects to purchase _____________ shares of _____________ Stock of LAREDO OIL, INC. (the “ Warrant
Stock”) pursuant to the terms of the attached Warrant, and tenders herewith payment of the purchase price for such shares in full.
(2)
In exercising the Warrant, the undersigned Holder hereby confirms and acknowledges that the representations and warranties set forth in
Section 4 of the Purchase Agreement (as defined in the Warrant) as they apply to the undersigned Holder continue to be true and correct as of this date.
(3)

Please issue a certificate or certificates representing such shares of Warrant Stock in the name specified below:

(Name)
(Address)
(City, State, Zip Code)
(Federal Tax Identification Number)
(Date)

1-1

EXHBIT 10.2
NEITHER THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE NOR THE SECURITIES INTO WHICH THESE
SECURITIES ARE EXERCISABLE HAVE BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR APPLICABLE STATE
SECURITIES LAWS. THE SECURITIES MAY NOT BE OFFERED FOR SALE, SOLD, TRANSFERRED OR ASSIGNED (I) IN THE ABSENCE OF (A) AN
EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT FOR THE SECURITIES UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR (B) AN OPINION OF
COUNSEL, IN A GENERALLY ACCEPTABLE FORM, THAT REGISTRATION IS NOT REQUIRED UNDER SAID ACT OR (II) UNLESS SOLD PURSUANT
TO RULE 144 OR RULE 144A UNDER SAID ACT. NOTWITHSTANDING THE FOREGOING, THE SECURITIES MAY BE PLEDGED IN CONNECTION
WITH A BONA FIDE MARGIN ACCOUNT OR OTHER LOAN OR FINANCING ARRANGEMENT SECURED BY THE SECURITIES. ANY TRANSFEREE OF
THIS WARRANT SHOULD CAREFULLY REVIEW THE TERMS OF THIS WARRANT. THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS WARRANT MAY BE
LESS THAN THE NUMBER SET FORTH ON THE FACE HEREOF.

LAREDO OIL, INC.
WARRANT TO PURCHASE COMMON STOCK
Warrant No.: [NUMBER]
Number of Shares of Common Stock: [SHARES]
Effective Date of Issuance: [ISSUE DATE], 2011 (“Issuance Date”)
Date of Expiration: [ISSUE DATE], 2021 (“Expiration Date”)
Laredo Oil, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “ Company”), hereby certifies that, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which
are hereby acknowledged, [WARRANT HOLDER], the registered holder hereof or its permitted assigns (the “Holder”), is entitled, subject to the terms set forth
below, to purchase from the Company up to a total of [SHARES] shares of the common stock, par value $0.0001 per share (the “Common Stock”) of the
Company (each such share, a “Warrant Share” and all such shares, the “Warrant Shares”) at an exercise price equal to $0.70 per share (the “Exercise
Price”), at any time or times on or after [ISSUE DATE], 2011 (the “ Initial Exercise Date”), but not after 11:59 p.m., New York Time, on [ISSUE DATE], 2021
(the “Expiration Date”), upon surrender of this Warrant to Purchase Common Stock (including any Warrants to Purchase Common Stock issued in exchange,
transfer or replacement hereof, the “Warrant”).
This Warrant is issued pursuant to that certain Investment Banking Agreement, dated as of November 19, 2010, by and between the Company and
Sunrise Securities Corp. (as the same may be amended, supplemented or restated, the “Investment Banking Agreement”). This Warrant and any replacement
warrants issued upon transfer or exercise of a portion of this Warrant are collectively referred to herein as the “Warrants”.

Warrant To Purchase Common Stock
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1.

EXERCISE OF WARRANT.

( a )
Mechanics of Exercise. Subject to the terms and conditions hereof (including, without limitation, the limitations set forth in Section
1(f)), this Warrant may be exercised by the Holder on any day on or after the Initial Exercise Date, but not later than the Expiration Date, in whole or in part by (i)
delivery of a written notice, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit B (the “Exercise Notice”), of the Holder’s election to exercise this Warrant, (ii) (A) payment to
the Company of an amount equal to the applicable Exercise Price multiplied by the number of Warrant Shares as to which this Warrant is being exercised (the
“Aggregate Exercise Price”) in cash or wire transfer of immediately available funds, or (B) by notifying the Company that this Warrant is being exercised
pursuant to a Cashless Exercise (as defined in Section 1(d)), and (iii) if required by Section 1(g) or unless the Holder has previously delivered this Warrant to the
Company and it or a new replacement Warrant has not yet been delivered to the Holder, the surrender of this Warrant to a common carrier for overnight delivery
to the Company; provided, that if such Warrant Shares are to be issued in any name other than that of the registered holder of this Warrant, such issuance shall
be deemed a transfer and the provisions of Section 7(a) shall be applicable. On or before the first (1st) Business Day following the date on which the Company
has received each of the Exercise Notice, the Aggregate Exercise Price (or notice of a Cashless Exercise) and, if required, this Warrant (collectively, the
“Exercise Delivery Documents”), the Company shall transmit by facsimile an acknowledgment of confirmation of receipt of the Exercise Delivery Documents to
the Holder and the Company’s transfer agent (the “Transfer Agent”). On or before the third (3rd) Business Day following the date on which the Company has
received all of the Exercise Delivery Documents (the “Share Delivery Date ”), the Company shall (X) provided that the Transfer Agent is participating in The
Depository Trust Company (“DTC”) Fast Automated Securities Transfer Program, upon the request of the Holder, credit such aggregate number of shares of
Common Stock to which the Holder is entitled pursuant to such exercise to the Holder’s or its designee’s balance account with DTC through its Deposit
Withdrawal Agent Commission system, or (Y) if the Transfer Agent is not participating in the DTC Fast Automated Securities Transfer Program, issue and
dispatch by overnight courier to the address as specified in the Exercise Notice, a certificate, registered in the Company’s share register in the name of the
Holder or its designee, for the number of shares of Common Stock to which the Holder is entitled pursuant to such exercise. Upon delivery to the Company of
the Exercise Delivery Documents, the Holder shall be deemed for all corporate purposes to have become the holder of record of the Warrant Shares with
respect to which this Warrant has been exercised, irrespective of the date such Warrant Shares are credited to the Holder’s DTC account or the date of delivery
of the certificates evidencing such Warrant Shares, as the case may be. If this Warrant is submitted in connection with any exercise pursuant to this Section 1(a)
and the number of Warrant Shares represented by this Warrant submitted for exercise is greater than the number of Warrant Shares being acquired upon an
exercise, then the Company shall as soon as practicable and in no event later than three (3) Business Days after any exercise and at its own expense, issue a
new Warrant (in accordance with Section 7(d)) representing the right to purchase the number of Warrant Shares purchasable immediately prior to such exercise
under this Warrant, less the number of Warrant Shares with respect to which this Warrant is exercised. No fractional shares of Common Stock are to be issued
upon the exercise of this Warrant, but rather the number of shares of Common Stock to be issued shall be rounded up to the nearest whole number. The
Company shall pay any and all taxes which may be payable with respect to the issuance and delivery of Warrant Shares upon exercise of this Warrant, other
than income, franchise, profits or similar taxes of the Holder or taxes resulting from issuance of Warrant Shares to a Person other than the Holder.

Warrant To Purchase Common Stock
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(b)

Exercise Price. For purposes of this Warrant, “Exercise Price” means $0.70 per share of Common Stock of the Company.

(c)
Company’s Failure to Timely Deliver Securities . If within three (3) Trading Days after the Company’s receipt of the facsimile copy of a
Exercise Notice the Company shall fail to issue and deliver a certificate to the Holder and register such shares of Common Stock on the Company’s share
register or credit the Holder’s balance account with DTC for the number of shares of Common Stock to which the Holder is entitled upon such holder’s exercise
hereunder or if the Company fails to deliver to the Holder the certificate or certificates representing the applicable Warrant Shares (or credit the Holder’s balance
account at DTC with the applicable Warrant Shares) within three (3) Trading Days after its obligation to do so under clause (ii) below and if on or after such
Trading Day the Holder purchases (in an open market transaction or otherwise) shares of Common Stock to deliver in satisfaction of a sale by the Holder of
shares of Common Stock issuable upon such exercise that the Holder anticipated receiving from the Company (a “Buy-In”), then the Company shall, within
three (3) Business Days after the Holder’s request and in the Holder’s discretion, either (i) pay cash to the Holder in an amount equal to the Holder’s total
purchase price (including brokerage commissions, if any) for the shares of Common Stock so purchased (the “Buy-In Price”), at which point the Company’s
obligation to deliver such certificate (and to issue such shares of Common Stock) or credit such Holder’s balance account with DTC shall terminate, or (ii)
promptly honor its obligation to deliver to the Holder a certificate or certificates representing such shares of Common Stock or credit such Holder’s balance
account with DTC and pay cash to the Holder in an amount equal to the excess (if any) of the Buy-In Price over the product of (A) such number of shares of
Common Stock, times (B) the Closing Bid Price on the date of exercise.
(d)
Cashless Exercise. The Holder may, in its sole discretion, exercise this Warrant in whole or in part and, in lieu of making the cash
payment otherwise contemplated to be made to the Company upon such exercise in payment of the Aggregate Exercise Price, elect instead to receive upon
such exercise the “Net Number” of shares of Common Stock determined according to the following formula (a “Cashless Exercise”):
Net Number = (A x B) - (A x C)
B
For purposes of the foregoing formula:
A= the total number of shares with respect to which this Warrant is then being

exercised.

B= the arithmetic average of the Weighted Average Price of the shares of Common Stock (as reported by Bloomberg) over the thirty (30)
consecutive Trading Days ending on the date immediately preceding the date of the Exercise Notice.
C= the Exercise Price then in effect for the applicable Warrant Shares at the time of such exercise.
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(e)
Disputes. In the case of a dispute as to the determination of the Exercise Price or the arithmetic calculation of the Warrant Shares, the
Company shall promptly issue to the Holder the number of Warrant Shares that are not disputed and resolve such dispute in accordance with Section 12.
(f)
Insufficient Authorized Shares . If at any time while this Warrant remain outstanding the Company does not have a sufficient number of
authorized and unreserved shares of Common Stock to satisfy its obligation to reserve for issuance upon exercise of this Warrant at least a number of shares of
Common Stock (the “Required Reserve Amount”) as shall from time to time be necessary to effect the exercise of all of this Warrant then outstanding (an
“Authorized Share Failure”), then the Company shall immediately take all action necessary to increase the Company’s authorized shares of Common Stock to
an amount sufficient to allow the Company to reserve the Required Reserve Amount for this Warrant then outstanding.
( g )
Book-Entry. Upon exercise of this Warrant in accordance with the terms hereof, the Holder shall not be required to physically
surrender this Warrant to the Company unless it is being exercised for all of the Warrant Shares represented by the Warrant. The Holder and the Company shall
maintain records showing the number of Warrant Shares exercised and issued and the dates of such exercises or shall use such other method, reasonably
satisfactory to the Holder and the Company, so as not to require physical surrender of this Warrant upon each such exercise. In the event of any dispute or
discrepancy, such records of the Company establishing the number of Warrant Shares to which the Holder is entitled shall be controlling and determinative in the
absence of manifest error. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if this Warrant is exercised as aforesaid, the Holder may not transfer this Warrant unless the Holder
first physically surrenders this Warrant to the Company in accordance with Section 7(a). The Holder and any assignee, by acceptance of this Warrant,
acknowledge and agree that, by reason of the provisions of this paragraph, following exercises of any portion of this Warrant, the number of Warrant Shares
represented by this Warrant may be less than the number stated on the face hereof.
2.
ADJUSTMENT OF EXERCISE PRICE AND NUMBER OF WARRANT SHARES . The Exercise Price and the number of Warrant Shares shall
be adjusted from time to time as follows:
(a)
Adjustment upon Subdivision or Combination of shares of Common Stock . If the Company at any time on or after the Initial Exercise
Date subdivides (by any stock split, stock dividend, recapitalization or otherwise) one or more classes of its outstanding shares of Common Stock into a greater
number of shares, the Exercise Price in effect immediately prior to such subdivision will be proportionately reduced and the number of Warrant Shares will be
proportionately increased. If the Company at any time on or after the Initial Exercise Date combines (by combination, reverse stock split or otherwise) one or
more classes of its outstanding shares of Common Stock into a smaller number of shares, the Exercise Price in effect immediately prior to such combination will
be proportionately increased and the number of Warrant Shares will be proportionately decreased. Any adjustment under this Section 2(b) shall become
effective at the close of business on the date the subdivision or combination becomes effective.
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3.
RIGHTS UPON DISTRIBUTION OF ASSETS. If the Company shall declare or make any dividend or other distribution of its assets (or rights to
acquire its assets) to holders of shares of Common Stock, by way of return of capital or otherwise (including, without limitation, any distribution of stock or other
securities, property or options by way of a dividend, spin off, reclassification, corporate rearrangement, scheme of arrangement or other similar transaction) (a
“Distribution”) at any time after the issuance of this Warrant, then, in each such case, any Exercise Price in effect immediately prior to the close of business on
the record date fixed for the determination of holders of shares of Common Stock entitled to receive the Distribution shall be reduced, effective as of the close of
business on such record date, to a price determined by multiplying such Exercise Price by a fraction of which (i) the numerator shall be the Weighted Average
Price of the shares of Common Stock on the Trading Day immediately preceding such record date minus the value of the Distribution (as determined in good
faith by the Company’s Board of Directors) applicable to one share of shares of Common Stock, and (ii) the denominator shall be the Weighted Average Price of
the shares of Common Stock on the Trading Day immediately preceding such record date; provided, however, that in the event that the Distribution is of shares
of Common Stock (or common stock) (“Other Shares of Common Stock”) of a company whose common shares are traded on a national securities exchange or
a national automated quotation system, then the Holder may elect to receive a warrant to purchase Other Shares of Common Stock in lieu of an increase in the
number of Warrant Shares, the terms of which shall be identical to those of this Warrant, except that such warrant shall be exercisable into the number of shares
of Other Shares of Common Stock that would have been payable to the Holder pursuant to the Distribution had the Holder exercised this Warrant immediately
prior to such record date and with an aggregate exercise price equal to the product of the amount by which the Exercise Price of this Warrant was decreased
with respect to the Distribution pursuant to the terms of this Section 3.
4.

PURCHASE RIGHTS; FUNDAMENTAL TRANSACTIONS .

(a)
Purchase Rights. If at any time the Company grants, issues or sells any Options, Convertible Securities or rights to purchase stock,
warrants, securities or other property pro rata to the record holders of any class of shares of Common Stock (the “Purchase Rights”), then the Holder will be
entitled to acquire, upon the terms applicable to such Purchase Rights, the aggregate Purchase Rights which the Holder could have acquired if the Holder had
held the number of shares of Common Stock acquirable upon complete exercise of this Warrant (without regard to any limitations on the exercise of this
Warrant) immediately before the date on which a record is taken for the grant, issuance or sale of such Purchase Rights, or, if no such record is taken, the date
as of which the record holders of shares of Common Stock are to be determined for the grant, issue or sale of such Purchase Rights; provided that,
notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein in any such case the provisions of Section 2 shall not be applicable to such grant, issuance or sale by
the Company.
(b)
Fundamental Transactions. The Company shall not enter into or be party to a Fundamental Transaction in which the Company is not
a surviving entity holding all or substantially all of the assets that the Company held prior to such Fundamental Transaction, unless the Successor Entity
assumes in writing all of the obligations of the Company under this Warrant and the other Transaction Documents in accordance with the provisions of this
Section (4)(b) pursuant to written agreements in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Required Holders, including agreements to deliver to each
holder of Warrants in exchange for such Warrants a security of the Successor Entity evidenced by a written instrument substantially similar in form and
substance to this Warrant, including, without limitation, an adjusted exercise price equal to the value for the shares of Common Stock reflected by the terms of
such Fundamental Transaction, and exercisable for a corresponding number of shares of capital stock equivalent to the shares of Common Stock acquirable and
receivable upon exercise of this Warrant (without regard to any limitations on the exercise of this Warrant) prior to such Fundamental Transaction, and
reasonably satisfactory to the Required Holders. Prior to the consummation of any Fundamental Transaction pursuant to which holders of shares of Common
Stock are entitled to receive securities or other assets with respect to or in exchange for shares of Common Stock (a “Corporate Event”), the Company shall
make appropriate provision to insure that the Holder will thereafter have the right to receive upon an exercise of this Warrant at any time after the consummation
of the Fundamental Transaction but prior to the Expiration Date, in lieu of the shares of the Common Stock (or other securities, cash, assets or other property)
purchasable upon the exercise of the Warrant prior to such Fundamental Transaction, such shares of stock, securities, cash, assets or any other property
whatsoever (including warrants or other purchase or subscription rights) which the Holder would have been entitled to receive upon the happening of such
Fundamental Transaction had the Warrant been exercised immediately prior to such Fundamental Transaction. Provision made pursuant to the preceding
sentence shall be in a form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Required Holders. The provisions of this Section shall apply similarly and equally to
successive Fundamental Transactions and Corporate Events and shall be applied without regard to any limitations on the exercise of this Warrant.
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.
NONCIRCUMVENTION. The Company hereby covenants and agrees that the Company will not, by amendment of its Certificate of
Incorporation, Bylaws or through any reorganization, transfer of assets, consolidation, merger, scheme of arrangement, dissolution, issue or sale of securities, or
any other voluntary action, avoid or seek to avoid the observance or performance of any of the terms of this Warrant, and will at all times in good faith carry out
all the provisions of this Warrant and take all action as may be required to protect the rights of the Holder. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the
Company (i) shall not increase the par value of any shares of Common Stock receivable upon the exercise of this Warrant above the Exercise Price then in
effect, (ii) shall take all such actions as may be reasonably necessary or appropriate in order that the Company may validly and legally issue fully paid and
nonassessable shares of Common Stock upon the exercise of this Warrant, and (iii) shall, so long as any of the Warrants are outstanding, take all action
reasonably necessary to reserve and keep available out of its authorized and unissued shares of Common Stock, solely for the purpose of effecting the exercise
of the Warrants, the number of shares of Common Stock as shall from time to time be necessary to effect the exercise of the Warrants then outstanding (without
regard to any limitations on exercise).
6.
WARRANT HOLDER NOT DEEMED A STOCKHOLDER . Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, the Holder, solely in such Person’s
capacity as a holder of this Warrant, shall not be entitled to vote or receive dividends or be deemed the holder of share capital of the Company for any purpose,
nor shall anything contained in this Warrant be construed to confer upon the Holder, solely in such Person’s capacity as the Holder of this Warrant, any of the
rights of a stockholder of the Company or any right to vote, give or withhold consent to any corporate action (whether any reorganization, issue of stock,
reclassification of stock, consolidation, merger, conveyance or otherwise), receive notice of meetings, receive dividends or subscription rights, or otherwise, prior
to the issuance to the Holder of the Warrant Shares which such Person is then entitled to receive upon the due exercise of this Warrant. In addition, nothing
contained in this Warrant shall be construed as imposing any liabilities on the Holder to purchase any securities (upon exercise of this Warrant or otherwise) or
as a stockholder of the Company, whether such liabilities are asserted by the Company or by creditors of the Company. Notwithstanding this Section 6, the
Company shall provide the Holder with copies of the same notices and other information given to the stockholders of the Company generally,
contemporaneously with the giving thereof to the stockholders.
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7.

REISSUANCE OF WARRANTS.

( a )
Transfer of Warrant. If this Warrant is to be transferred in accordance herewith, the Holder shall surrender this Warrant to the
Company, whereupon the Company will forthwith issue and deliver upon the order of the Holder a new Warrant (in accordance with Section 7(d)), registered as
the Holder may request, representing the right to purchase the number of Warrant Shares being transferred by the Holder and, if less then the total number of
Warrant Shares then underlying this Warrant is being transferred, a new Warrant (in accordance with Section 7(d)) to the Holder representing the right to
purchase the number of Warrant Shares not being transferred.
( b )
Lost, Stolen or Mutilated Warrant . Upon receipt by the Company of evidence reasonably satisfactory to the Company of the loss,
theft, destruction or mutilation of this Warrant, and, in the case of loss, theft or destruction, of any indemnification undertaking by the Holder to the Company in
customary form and, in the case of mutilation, upon surrender and cancellation of this Warrant, the Company shall execute and deliver to the Holder a new
Warrant (in accordance with Section 7(d)) representing the right to purchase the Warrant Shares then underlying this Warrant.
(c)
Exchangeable for Multiple Warrants. This Warrant is exchangeable, upon the surrender hereof by the Holder at the principal office of
the Company, for a new Warrant or Warrants (in accordance with Section 7(d)) representing in the aggregate the right to purchase the number of Warrant
Shares then underlying this Warrant, and each such new Warrant will represent the right to purchase such portion of such Warrant Shares as is designated by
the Holder at the time of such surrender; provided, however, that no Warrants for fractional shares of Common Stock shall be given.
(d)
Issuance of New Warrants. Whenever the Company is required to issue a new Warrant pursuant to the terms of this Warrant, such
new Warrant (i) shall be of like tenor with this Warrant, (ii) shall represent, as indicated on the face of such new Warrant, the right to purchase the Warrant
Shares then underlying this Warrant (or in the case of a new Warrant being issued pursuant to Section 7(a) or Section 7(c), the Warrant Shares designated by
the Holder which, when added to the number of shares of Common Stock underlying the other new Warrants issued in connection with such issuance, does not
exceed the number of Warrant Shares then underlying this Warrant), (iii) shall have an issuance date, as indicated on the face of such new Warrant which is the
same as the Issuance Date, and (iv) shall have the same rights and conditions as this Warrant.
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NOTICES. Whenever notice is required to be given under this Warrant, unless otherwise provided herein, such notice shall be given in
accordance with Section 9.B. of the Investment Banking Agreement. The Company shall provide the Holder with prompt written notice of all actions taken
pursuant to this Warrant, including in reasonable detail a description of such action and the reason therefore. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the
Company will give written notice to the Holder (i) promptly upon any adjustment of the Exercise Price, setting forth in reasonable detail, and certifying, the
calculation of such adjustment and (ii) at least fifteen (15) days prior to the date on which the Company closes its books or takes a record (A) with respect to any
dividend or distribution upon the shares of Common Stock, (B) with respect to any grants, issuances or sales of any Options, Convertible Securities or rights to
purchase stock, warrants, securities or other property, other than Excluded Securities, to holders of shares of Common Stock or (C) for determining rights to
vote with respect to any Fundamental Transaction, dissolution or liquidation, provided in each case that such information shall be made known to the public prior
to or in conjunction with such notice being provided to the Holder.
9 .
AMENDMENT AND WAIVER. Except as otherwise provided herein, the provisions of this Warrant may be amended and the Company may
take any action herein prohibited, or omit to perform any act herein required to be performed by it, only if the Company has obtained the written consent of the
Required Holders; provided that no such action may increase the exercise price of any Warrant or decrease the number of shares or change the class of stock
obtainable upon exercise of any Warrant without the written consent of the Holder. No such amendment shall be effective to the extent that it applies to less than
all of the holders of the Warrants then outstanding.
1 0 .
GOVERNING LAW. This Warrant shall be governed by and construed and enforced in accordance with, and all questions concerning the
construction, validity, interpretation and performance of this Warrant shall be governed by, the internal laws of the State of New York, without giving effect to any
choice of law or conflict of law provision or rule (whether of the State of New York or any other jurisdictions) that would cause the application of the laws of any
jurisdictions other than the State of New York.
1 1 .
CONSTRUCTION; HEADINGS. This Warrant shall be deemed to be jointly drafted by the Company and all the Buyers and shall not be
construed against any person as the drafter hereof. The headings of this Warrant are for convenience of reference and shall not form part of, or affect the
interpretation of, this Warrant.
12.
DISPUTE RESOLUTION. In the case of a dispute as to the determination of the Exercise Price or the arithmetic calculation of the Warrant
Shares, the Company shall submit the disputed determinations or arithmetic calculations via facsimile within two (2) Business Days of receipt of the Exercise
Notice giving rise to such dispute, as the case may be, to the Holder. If the Holder and the Company are unable to agree upon such determination or calculation
of the Exercise Price or the Warrant Shares within three Business Days of such disputed determination or arithmetic calculation being submitted to the Holder,
then the Company shall, within two (2) Business Days submit via facsimile (a) the disputed determination of the Exercise Price to an independent, reputable
investment bank selected by the Company and approved by the Holder or (b) the disputed arithmetic calculation of the Warrant Shares to the Company’s
independent, outside accountant. The Company shall cause at its expense the investment bank or the accountant, as the case may be, to perform the
determinations or calculations and notify the Company and the Holder of the results no later than ten Business Days from the time it receives the disputed
determinations or calculations. Such investment bank’s or accountant’s determination or calculation, as the case may be, shall be binding upon all parties
absent demonstrable error.
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13.
REMEDIES, OTHER OBLIGATIONS, BREACHES AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF . The remedies provided in this Warrant shall be cumulative
and in addition to all other remedies available under this Warrant and the other Transaction Documents, at law or in equity (including a decree of specific
performance and/or other injunctive relief), and nothing herein shall limit the right of the Holder right to pursue actual damages for any failure by the Company to
comply with the terms of this Warrant. The Company acknowledges that a breach by it of its obligations hereunder will cause irreparable harm to the Holder and
that the remedy at law for any such breach may be inadequate. The Company therefore agrees that, in the event of any such breach or threatened breach, the
holder of this Warrant shall be entitled, in addition to all other available remedies, to an injunction restraining any breach, without the necessity of showing
economic loss and without any bond or other security being required.
14.
TRANSFER. This Warrant may be offered for sale, sold, transferred or assigned without the consent of the Company, provided that any such
offer, sale, transfer or assignment is in compliance with applicable securities law, and the terms and conditions hereof.
15.

CERTAIN DEFINITIONS. For purposes of this Warrant, the following terms shall have the following meanings:
(a)

“Bloomberg” means Bloomberg Financial Markets.

(b)
“Business Day” means any day other than Saturday, Sunday or other day on which commercial banks in The City of New York are
authorized or required by law to remain closed.
(c)
“Closing Bid Price” and “Closing Sale Price” means, for any security as of any date, the last closing bid price and last closing trade
price, respectively, for such security on the Principal Market, as reported by Bloomberg, or, if the Principal Market begins to operate on an extended hours basis
and does not designate the closing bid price or the closing trade price, as the case may be, then the last bid price or the last trade price, respectively, of such
security prior to 4:00:00 p.m., New York Time, as reported by Bloomberg, or, if the Principal Market is not the principal securities exchange or trading market for
such security, the last closing bid price or last trade price, respectively, of such security on the principal securities exchange or trading market where such
security is listed or traded as reported by Bloomberg, or if the foregoing do not apply, the last closing bid price or last trade price, respectively, of such security in
the over-the-counter market on the electronic bulletin board for such security as reported by Bloomberg, or, if no closing bid price or last trade price, respectively,
is reported for such security by Bloomberg, the average of the bid prices, or the ask prices, respectively, of any market makers for such security as reported in
the “pink sheets” by Pink Sheets LLC (formerly the National Quotation Bureau, Inc.). If the Closing Bid Price or the Closing Sale Price cannot be calculated for a
security on a particular date on any of the foregoing bases, the Closing Bid Price or the Closing Sale Price, as the case may be, of such security on such date
shall be the fair market value as mutually determined by the Company and the Holder. If the Company and the Holder are unable to agree upon the fair market
value of such security, then such dispute shall be resolved pursuant to Section 12. All such determinations to be appropriately adjusted for any stock dividend,
stock split, stock combination or other similar transaction during the applicable calculation period.
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(d)
“Common Stock Deemed Outstanding” means, at any given time, the number of shares of Common Stock actually outstanding at
such time, plus the number of shares of Common Stock deemed to be outstanding pursuant to Sections 2(a)(i) and 2(a)(ii) hereof regardless of whether the
Options or Convertible Securities are actually exercisable at such time, but excluding any shares of Common Stock owned or held by or for the account of the
Company or issuable upon exercise of the Warrants.
(e)
“Convertible Securities” means any stock or securities (other than Options) directly or indirectly convertible into or exercisable or
exchangeable for shares of Common Stock.
(f)
“Eligible Market” means the NASDAQ Capital Market, the American Stock Exchange, the New York Stock Exchange, the NASDAQ
Global Market or the NASDAQ Global Select Market.
(g)
“Exempt Issuance” means the issuance of (i) shares of Common Stock or options to employees, officers or directors of the Company
pursuant to any stock or option plan duly adopted for such purpose, by a majority of the members of the Board of Directors, and (ii) securities issued pursuant to
acquisitions or strategic transactions approved by a majority of the disinterested directors of the Company, provided that any such issuance shall only be to a
Person (or to the equityholders of a Person) which is, itself or through its subsidiaries, an operating company or an owner of an asset in a business synergistic
with the business of the Company and shall provide to the Company additional benefits in addition to the investment of funds, but shall not include a transaction
in which the Company is issuing securities primarily for the purpose of raising capital or to an entity whose primary business is investing in securities.
(h)
“Fundamental Transaction” means that the Company (or in the case of clause (vi) any “person” or “group” (as these terms are used
for purposes of Sections 13(d) and 14(d) of the Exchange Act)) shall, directly or indirectly, in one or more related transactions, (i) consolidate or merge with or
into (whether or not the Company is the surviving corporation) another Person, or (ii) sell, assign, transfer, convey or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all
of the properties or assets of the Company to another Person, or (iii) allow another Person to make a purchase, tender or exchange offer that is accepted by the
holders of more than the 50% of either the outstanding shares of Common Stock (not including any shares of Common Stock held by the Person or Persons
making or party to, or associated or affiliated with the Persons making or party to, such purchase, tender or exchange offer), or (iv) consummate a stock
purchase agreement or other business combination (including, without limitation, a reorganization, recapitalization, spin-off or scheme of arrangement) with
another Person whereby such other Person acquires more than the 50% of the outstanding shares of Common Stock (not including any shares of Common
Stock held by the other Person or other Persons making or party to, or associated or affiliated with the other Persons making or party to, such stock purchase
agreement or other business combination), (v) reorganize, recapitalize or reclassify its Common Stock, or (vi) is or shall become the “beneficial owner” (as
defined in Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange Act), directly or indirectly, of 50% of the aggregate ordinary voting power represented by issued and outstanding
Common Stock.
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(i)

“Options” means any rights, warrants or options to subscribe for or purchase shares of Common Stock or Convertible Securities.

(j)
“Parent Entity” of a Person means an entity that, directly or indirectly, controls the applicable Person and whose common stock or
equivalent equity security is quoted or listed on an Eligible Market, or, if there is more than one such Person or Parent Entity, the Person or Parent Entity with the
largest public market capitalization as of the date of consummation of the Fundamental Transaction.
(k)
“Person” means an individual, a limited liability company, a partnership, a joint venture, a corporation, a trust, an unincorporated
organization, any other entity and a government or any department or agency thereof.
(l)

“Principal Market” means the NASDAQ Capital Market.

(m)
“Required Holders” means the holders of the Warrants representing at least a majority of shares of Common Stock underlying the
Warrants then outstanding.
(n)
“Successor Entity” means the Person (or, if so elected by the Required Holders, the Parent Entity) formed by, resulting from or
surviving any Fundamental Transaction or the Person (or, if so elected by the Required Holders, the Parent Entity) with which such Fundamental Transaction
shall have been entered into.
(o)
“Trading Day” means any day on which the Common Stock is scheduled to trade on the Principal Market, or, if the Principal Market is
not the principal trading market for the Common Stock, then on the principal securities exchange or securities market on which the Common Stock is then
traded; provided that “Trading Day” shall not include any day on which the Common Stock is scheduled to trade on such exchange or market for less than 4.5
hours or any day that the Common Stock is suspended from trading during the final hour of trading on such exchange or market (or if such exchange or market
does not designate in advance the closing time of trading on such exchange or market, then during the hour ending at 4:00:00 p.m., New York Time).
(p)
“Weighted Average Price” means, for any security as of any date, the dollar volume-weighted average price for such security on the
Principal Market during the period beginning at 9:30:01 a.m., New York City time, and ending at 4:00:00 p.m., New York City time, as reported by Bloomberg
through its “Volume at Price” function or, if the foregoing does not apply, the dollar volume-weighted average price of such security in the over-the-counter
market on the electronic bulletin board for such security during the period beginning at 9:30:01 a.m., New York City time, and ending at 4:00:00 p.m., New York
City time, as reported by Bloomberg, or, if no dollar volume-weighted average price is reported for such security by Bloomberg for such hours, the average of the
highest closing bid price and the lowest closing ask price of any of the market makers for such security as reported in the “pink sheets” by Pink Sheets LLC
(formerly the National Quotation Bureau, Inc.). If the Weighted Average Price cannot be calculated for such security on such date on any of the foregoing bases,
the Weighted Average Price of such security on such date shall be the fair market value as mutually determined by the Company and the Required Holders. If
the Company and the Required Holders are unable to agree upon the fair market value of such security, then such dispute shall be resolved pursuant to Section
12 with the term “Weighted Average Price” being substituted for the term “Exercise Price.” All such determinations shall be appropriately adjusted for any share
dividend, share split or other similar transaction during such period.
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16.

REGISTRATION RIGHTS

(a)
Registration Under the Securities Act of 1933. The Warrants, and the shares of Common Stock issuable upon exercise of the Warrants,
have not been registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Act”). Upon exercise, in part or in whole, of the Warrant certificates representing
the shares of Common Stock and any other securities issuable upon exercise of the Warrants or issuable pursuant to this Warrant (the “Warrant Securities”)
shall bear the following legend:
The securities represented by this certificate have not been registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Act”),
and may not be offered or sold except pursuant to (i) an effective registration statement under the Act, (ii) to the extent
applicable, Rule 144 under the Act (or any similar rule under such Act relating to the disposition of securities), or (iii) an opinion
of counsel, if such opinion shall be reasonably satisfactory to counsel to the issuer, that an exemption from registration under
such Act is available.
The legend set forth above shall be removed and the Company shall issue a certificate without such legend to the holder of the Warrant Securities upon which it
is stamped, if, (i) such Warrant Securities are registered for resale under the Securities Act of 1933 Act, as amended (the “1933 Act”) or (ii) in connection with a
sale, assignment or other transfer, if such holder provides the Company with an opinion of counsel, in a generally acceptable form, to the effect that such sale,
assignment or transfer of the Warrant Securities may be made without registration under the applicable requirements of the 1933 Act.
( b )
Piggyback Registration. If, at any time commencing after the Issuance Date, but no later than the Expiration Date, the Company
proposes to register any of its securities under the Act (other than in connection with a merger or pursuant to Form S-8), it will give written notice by registered
mail, at least thirty (30) days prior to the filing of each such registration statement, to the Holder of the Warrants and/or the Warrant Securities of its intention to
do so. If the Holder of the Warrants and/or the Warrant Securities notifies the Company within twenty (20) days after receipt of any such notice of its or their
desire to include any such securities in such proposed registration statement, the Company shall afford such Holder of the Warrants and/or the Warrant
Securities the opportunity to have any such Warrant Securities registered under such registration statement.
Notwithstanding the provisions of this Section 16(b), the Company shall have the right at any time after it shall have given written notice pursuant to this
Section 16(b) (irrespective of whether a written request for inclusion of any such securities shall have been made) to elect not to file any such proposed
registration statement, or to withdraw the same after the filing but prior to the effective date thereof.
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(c)

Demand Registration.

(i)
At any time commencing after the date hereof and Issuance Date that the Company meets the requirements for filing a S-3
registration statement, but no later than the Expiration Date, the Holder of the Warrants and/or Warrant Securities representing a “Majority” (as hereinafter
defined) of such securities (assuming the exercise of all of the Warrants) shall have the right (which right is in addition to the registration rights under Section
16(b) hereof), exercisable by written notice to the Company, to have the Company prepare and file with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the
“Commission”), on one occasion, a S-3 registration statement and such other documents, including a prospectus, as may be necessary in the opinion of counsel
for the Company and counsel for the Holder, in order to comply with the provisions of the Act, so as to permit a public offering and sale of their respective
Warrant Securities for nine (9) consecutive months by such Holder and any other Holder of the Warrants and/or Warrant Securities who notify the Company
within ten (10) days after receiving notice from the Company of such request. The Company covenants and agrees to give written notice of any registration
request under this Section 16(b) by any Holder to all other holders of the Warrants and the Warrant Securities within ten (10) days from the date of the receipt of
any such registration request.
(d)
Covenants of the Company with Respect to Registration . In connection with any registration under Sections 16(b) or 16(c) hereof, the
Company covenants and agrees as follows:
(i)
The Company shall use its best efforts to file a registration statement within ninety (90) days of receipt of any demand therefor,
shall use its best efforts to have any registration statement declared effective at the earliest possible time, and shall furnish each Holder desiring to sell Warrant
Securities such number of prospectuses as shall reasonably be requested.
(ii)
The Company shall pay all costs (excluding fees and expenses of the Holder’s counsel and any underwriting or selling
commissions), fees and expenses in connection with all registration statements filed pursuant to Sections 16(b) and 16(c)(i) hereof including, without limitation,
the Company’s legal and accounting fees, printing expenses, blue sky fees and expenses.
(iii)
The Company will take all necessary action which may be required in qualifying or registering the Warrant Securities included
in a registration statement for offering and sale under the securities or blue sky laws of such states as reasonably are requested by the Holder, provided that the
Company shall not be obligated to execute or file any general consent to do business under the laws of any such jurisdiction.
(iv)
The Company shall indemnify the Holder of the Warrant Securities to be sold pursuant to any registration statement and each
person, if any, who controls such Holder within the meaning of Section 15 of the Act or Section 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the
“Exchange Act”), from and against any and all loss, claim, damage, expense or liability (including all expenses reasonably incurred in investigating, preparing or
defending against any claim whatsoever) to which any of them may become subject under the Act, the Exchange Act or otherwise, arising from such registration
statement.
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(v)
The Holder of the Warrant Securities to be sold pursuant to a registration statement, and their successors and assigns, shall
severally, and not jointly, indemnify the Company, its officers and directors and each person, if any, who controls the Company within the meaning of Section 15
of the Act or Section 20(a) of the Exchange Act, from and against any and all loss, claim, damage, expense or liability (including all expenses reasonably
incurred in investigating, preparing or defending against any claim whatsoever) to which they may become subject under the Act, the Exchange Act or otherwise,
arising from information furnished in writing by or on behalf of such Holder, or their successors or assigns, for specific inclusion in such registration statement.
(vi)
Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed as requiring the Holder to exercise their Warrants prior to the initial
filing of any registration statement or the effectiveness thereof.
(vii)
The Company shall not permit the inclusion of any securities other than the Warrant Securities to be included in any
registration statement filed pursuant to Section 16(c) hereof without the prior written consent of the Holder of the Warrants and Warrant Securities representing a
Majority of such securities (assuming an exercise of all of the Warrants).
(viii)
The Company shall furnish to each Holder participating in the offering and to each underwriter, if any, a signed counterpart,
addressed to such Holder or underwriter, of (i) an opinion of counsel to the Company, dated the effective date of such registration statement (and, if such
registration includes an underwritten public offering, an opinion dated the date of the closing under the underwriting agreement), and (ii) a “cold comfort” letter
dated the effective date of such registration statement (and, if such registration includes an underwritten public offering, a letter dated the date of the closing
under the underwriting agreement) signed by the independent public accountants who have issued a report on the Company’s financial statements included in
such registration statement, in each case covering substantially the same matters with respect to such registration statement (and the prospectus included
therein) and, in the case of such accountants’ letter, with respect to events subsequent to the date of such financial statements, as are customarily covered in
opinions of issuer’s counsel and in accountants’ letters delivered to underwriters in underwritten public offerings of securities.
(ix)
The Company shall as soon as practicable after the effective date of the registration statement, and in any event within 15
months thereafter, make “generally available to its security holders” (within the meaning of Rule 158 under the Act) an earnings statement (which need not be
audited) complying with Section 11(a) of the Act and covering a period of at least 12 consecutive months beginning after the effective date of the registration
statement.
(x)
The Company shall deliver promptly to each Holder participating in the offering requesting the correspondence and
memoranda described below and to the managing underwriter copies of all correspondence between the Commission and the Company, its counsel or auditors
and all memoranda relating to discussions with the Commission or its staff with respect to the registration statement and permit each Holder and underwriter to
do such investigation, upon reasonable advance notice, with respect to information contained in or omitted from the registration statement as it deems
reasonably necessary to comply with applicable securities laws or rules of the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. Such investigation shall include
access to books, records and properties and opportunities to discuss the business of the Company with its officers and independent auditors, all to such
reasonable extent and at such reasonable times and as often as any such Holder shall reasonably request.
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(xi)
The Company shall enter into an underwriting agreement with the managing underwriter selected for such underwriting by the
Company, subject to the reasonable approval of the Holders holding a Majority of the Warrant Securities requested to be included in such underwriting. Such
agreement shall be satisfactory in form and substance to the Company, each Holder and such managing underwriter, and shall contain such representations,
warranties and covenants by the Company and such other terms as are customarily contained in agreements of that type used by the managing
underwriter. The Holder shall be parties to any underwriting agreement relating to an underwritten sale of their Warrant Securities and may, at their option,
require that any or all the representations, warranties and covenants of the Company to or for the benefit of such underwriter shall also be made to and for the
benefit of such Holder. Such Holder shall not be required to make any representations or warranties to or agreements with the Company or the underwriter
except as they may relate to such Holders and their intended methods of distribution.
(xii)
For purposes of Section 16 of this Agreement, the term “Majority” in reference to the Holder of Warrants or Warrant
Securities, shall mean in excess of fifty percent (50%) of the then outstanding Warrants or Warrant Securities that (i) are not held by the Company, an affiliate,
officer, director, creditor, employee or agent thereof or any of their respective affiliates, members of their family, persons acting as nominees or in conjunction
therewith, or (ii) have not been resold to the public.
(xiii)
In addition to the Warrant Securities, upon the written request therefor by any Holder, the Company shall include in the
registration statement any other securities of the Company held by such Holder as of the date of filing of such registration statement, including without limitation
restricted shares of Common Stock, options, warrants or any other securities convertible into or exchangeable for shares of Common Stock.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Warrant to Purchase Common Stock to be duly executed as of the Issuance Date set out above.

LAREDO OIL, INC.

By:
Name:
Title:
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EXHIBIT A
EXERCISE NOTICE
TO BE EXECUTED BY THE REGISTERED HOLDER TO EXERCISE THIS
WARRANT TO PURCHASE COMMON STOCK
LAREDO OIL, INC.
The undersigned holder hereby exercises the right to purchase _________________ of the shares of Common Stock (“ Warrant Shares”) of Laredo Oil, Inc., a
Delaware corporation (the “Company”), evidenced by the attached Warrant to Purchase Common Stock (the “ Warrant”). Capitalized terms used herein and not
otherwise defined shall have the respective meanings set forth in the Warrant.
1. Form of Exercise Price. The Holder intends that payment of the Exercise Price shall be made as:
____________

a “Cash Exercise” with respect to _________________ Warrant Shares; and/or

____________

a “Cashless Exercise” with respect to _______________ Warrant Shares (to the extent permitted).

2. Payment of Exercise Price. In the event that the holder has elected a Cash Exercise with respect to some or all of the Warrant Shares to be issued pursuant
hereto, the holder shall pay the Aggregate Exercise Price in the sum of $___________________ to the Company in accordance with the terms of the Warrant.
3. Delivery of Warrant Shares. The Company shall deliver to the holder __________ Warrant Shares in accordance with the terms of the Warrant.
Date: _______________ __, ________

_______________________________
Name of Registered Holder

By:
Name:
Title:

A-1

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

The Company hereby acknowledges this Exercise Notice and hereby directs [ Name of Transfer Agent] to issue the above indicated number of shares of
Common Stock in accordance with the Transfer Agent Instructions dated ______________ from the Company and acknowledged and agreed to by [Name of
Transfer Agent].

LAREDO OIL, INC.

By:
Name:
Title:

A-2

Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
RULE 13a-14(a) OR 15d-14(a)
I, Mark See, Chief Executive Officer of Laredo Oil, Inc., certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the period ended August 31, 2011 of Laredo Oil, Inc., the registrant;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for
the registrant and have:

5.

a.

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b.

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c.

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d.

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
a.

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b.

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting.

Date: October 17, 2011
/s/ Mark See
Mark See
Chief Executive Officer

Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
RULE 13a-14(a) OR 15d-14(a)
I, Bradley E. Sparks, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of Laredo Oil, Inc., certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the period ended August 31, 2011 of Laredo Oil, Inc., the registrant;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for
the registrant and have:

5.

a.

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b.

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c.

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d.

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
a.

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b.

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting.

Date: October 17, 2011
/s/ Bradley E. Sparks
Bradley E. Sparks
Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Laredo Oil, Inc. on Form 10-Q for the period ended August 31, 2011 as filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), I, Mark See, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the best of my knowledge and belief:
(1)

the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2)

the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

/s/ Mark See
Mark See
Chief Executive Officer

Date: October 17, 2011

Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quaterly Report of Laredo Oil, Inc. on Form 10-Q for the period ended August 31, 2011, as filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), I, Bradley E. Sparks, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section
1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the best of my knowledge and belief:
(1)

the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2)

the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

/s/ Bradley E. Sparks
Bradley E. Sparks
Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

Date: October 17, 2011

